

# WebAccess

# **Driver Configuration Manual**

**ModSim** 

MOD\_DEV.DLL Driver date: 2017/7/18

English Version 1.0





2018-10-02	1.0	Eden.Sun	Joseph.Chiu	Initial Release
	F	Revision Hi	story	

#### Table of Contents



## **Driver Configuration Manual**

1. Intro	oduction	3
1.1 In <sup>-</sup>	troduction to Modbus Ethernet/TCPIP	3
1.1.1	Modbus Ethernet/TCPIP	3
1.1.2	Ease of Use: Parameters	3
1.1.3	Redundant Comports	4
1.1.4	Modbus Protocols	4
2. Cont	figuration of Modicon Ethernet Driver	6
2.1 Co	omport Configuration	7
2.1.1	Comport Number	7
2.1.2	Description	7
2.1.3	Scan Time	8
2.1.4	Timeout	8
2.1.5	Retry Count	8
2.1.6	Auto Recover Time	9
2.1.7	Backup Port	9
2.2 De	evice Configuration	9
2.2.1	Device Name	. 10
2.2.2	Description	. 10
2.2.3	Unit Number	. 10
2.2.4	Device Type	. 11
2.2.5	IP Address	. 11
2.2.6	Port Number	. 11
2.2.7	Device Address	. 11
2.2.8	Use RTU over TCP/IP ? (0: No, 1: Yes)	. 11
2.2.9	Use UDP	. 11
2.2.10	Packet Delay (ms)	. 12
2.2.11	Digital block size	. 12
2.2.12	Analog block size	. 12
2.2.13	Multiple Devices with same Device Address	. 12
2.3 Ta	g Configuration	. 12
2.3.1	Analog Input data type	. 13
2.3.2	Analog Output data type	. 14
2.3.3	Discrete Input data type	. 14
2.3.4	Discrete Output data type	. 15
2.3.5	Text data type	. 15
2.4 Pa	irameter Configuration	. 16
3. Erro	r Code	. 17



# 1. Introduction

# 1.1 Introduction to Modbus Ethernet/TCPIP

Advantech WebAccess SCADA Node provides a Modbus master interface using Modbus RTU protocol for communicating with Modbus slave devices. Slave devices include AEG/Modicon 984 and Quantum PLCs, GE Fanuc Series-6, Series-5, Series-90, and many others.

The Modicon driver accesses real-time data and control automation equipment with Modbus RTU protocol.

Modbus is a "De-facto" standard for communications. Modbus is an "open" communications protocol designed for industrial control and monitoring applications. Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC), Single Loop and Multi- Loop Controllers, Remote Terminal Units (RTU, Distributed control Systems (DCS), computers, shop floor operator panels and other devices can communicate throughout plants and substations via Modbus RTU or Modbus Ethernet network.

Especially for connection of SCADA and HMI systems to intelligent operator panels, PLCs and controllers, Modbus became a de-facto standard. Many automation devices support the Modbus protocol in both Serial Modbus RTU and Modbus Ethernet.

## 1.1.1 Modbus Ethernet/TCPIP

The Advantech WebAccess Modicon Modbus Device Driver can communicate with Ethernet TCP/IP communications (or RS-232, RS-422 or RS-485 as a backup) using a packet version of the Modbus RTU protocol. Any TCP/IP compatible medium is acceptable, the most common being Ethernet. The Advantech WebAccess COM Ports are "virtual" in the Advantech WebAccess configuration for Modbus TCP/IP. The Advantech WebAccess driver will search all NIC (network Interface Cards) to find the addressed devices regardless of the configured Comport. For the Modbus TCP/IP driver, it is recommended to use a Com Port that does not utilize an actual Serial COM port.

The computer communication port must be designed for use with the Windows 32-bit operating system. Modicon's Modbus TCP/IP network is a single master, multi-drop network, which supports up to 247 slave devices.

Advantech WebAccess can scan every 100 milliseconds over TCP/IP connections limited only by the PLC, Controller or RTU and the network connection.

The Genuine Advantech WebAccess Modbus Driver is among the fastest Modbus TCP/IP drivers available, if not the fastest.

## **1.1.2** Ease of Use: Parameters

Like all Genuine Advantech WebAccess drivers, object-oriented "parameters" guide novice users with pre-built templates containing typical addresses.

Al is an Analog Input (30001 to 39999, range of addresses). These are typically read only numbers from the PLC.



AO is an Analog Output (40001 to 49999, range of addresses). These are typically values written to the PLC by operators and programs. Setpoints, Outputs, alarm limits are examples.

DI is a Digital Input (00001 to 09999, range of addresses). These are typically read only statuses (On, Off, True, False, etc.) from the PLC.

DO is a Digital Output (10001 to 19999, range of addresses). These are typically values written to the PLC by operators and programs. On/ OFF, RUN/STOP are examples.

Users can select a parameter type, and then modify the address to the correct register in order to build a tag.

## 1.1.3 Redundant Comports

Advantech WebAccess supports redundant Comports. Two Ethernet comports can be used, the second acts as a backup to the first. The Advantech

WebAccess COM Ports are "virtual" in the Advantech WebAccess configuration for Modbus TCP/IP. The Advantech WebAccess driver will search all NIC (network Interface Cards) to find the addressed devices regardless of the configured Comport. A Backup port does not need to be specified. However, a second IP address for the PLC must be specified (i.e. the PLC must have two Network Interface cards). Modbus Ethernet can also be backed up with a Serial connection (and vice versa). The Backup port must be specified as the actual Serial Comport (usually COMPORT 1 or 2).

## 1.1.4 Modbus Protocols

## 1.1.4.1 Modbus Ethernet / TCPIP

Modicon's Modbus Ethernet network is a single master, multi-drop network, which supports up to 247 slave devices. The preferred physical layer for the Modbus Ethernet network TCP/IP over Ethernet, although any TCP/IP network connection is supported including the Internet, WANs and LANs. A single IP address can support up to 255 devices. Serial communications can be "encapsulated" into TCP/IP packets using Modbus Serial-to-Ethernet gateways.

The main advantage of Modbus TCP/IP is the greater character density and greater network speed allows better data throughput than Modbus RTU or ASCII.

## 1.1.4.2 Modbus RTU

The Modbus Serial RTU is described in another User Guide.

This is the default protocol of the Advantech WebAccess Modicon serial device driver. In Modbus RTU, each eight-bit byte, in a message, contains two four- bit hexadecimal characters. The main advantage of Modbus RTU is the greater character density allows better data throughput than Modbus ASCII for same baud rate.

Advantech WebAccess can scan every 100 milliseconds over serial connections limited only by the PLC, Controller or RTU and the connection.

Most modern Modbus serial devices use Modbus RTU.

## 1.1.4.3 Modbus ASCII

The Modbus Serial ASCII Driver is described in another User Guide.

This is an option to the Modicon protocol of the Advantech WebAccess Modicon serial device drive.



## **Driver Configuration Manual**

In Modbus ASCII, each eight-bit byte, in a message, is sent as two ASCII characters. The main advantage is that it allows time intervals of up to one second to occur between characters without causing an error.



# 2. Configuration of Modicon Ethernet Driver

The steps, in summary, are:

- 1. Start the Internet Explorer **Web Browser**.
- 2. Enter IP address of the **Project Node**.
- 3. Select WebAccess Configuration.
- 4. Open or Create a **Project**.
- 5. Select a SCADA Node or use **Add SCADA node** to create one. (A SCADA node is the PC that will connect to the automation hardware).
- 6. Configure a TCP/IP comport using **Add Comport** for the SCADA Node.
- 7. Select a **TCP/IP** type and Submit
- 8. Select the Comport to open Comport Properties.
- 9. Configure a Scan time and Timeout for the Com Port.
- 10. Select Add Device.
- 11. Select **Modicon** as the **Device Type**. This determines the communications Protocol and Device Driver.
- 12. Configure IP Address, Port Number, Unit Number and Device Number to match those in the PLC.
- 13. Refer to later sections in this guide for other fields (they usually are not needed).
- 14. Use Add Tag or Add Block to create tags.
- Select a Parameter (AI, AO, DI, and DO) to match the type of data to be read (Analog Input, Analog Output, Digital Input, and Digital Output). The Address of the data must match the Parameter Type:
  - Al is an Analog Input (30001 to 39999, range of addresses). These are typically read only numbers from the PLC.
  - AO is an Analog Output (40001 to 49999, range of addresses). These are typically values written to the PLC by operators and programs. Setpoints, Outputs, alarm limits are examples.
  - DI is a Digital Input (00001 to 09999, range of addresses). These are typically read only statuses (On, Off, True, False, etc.) from the PLC.
  - DO is a Digital Output (10001 to 19999, range of addresses). These are typically values written to the PLC by operators and programs. On/ OFF, RUN/STOP are examples.
- 16. Modify the Address to match the actual address.
- 17. Apply a Tag name.
- 18. Edit Tags in Project Manager to assign Alarms, Scaling, Engineering Units, Description and other features.

Note - It is recommended to select a Comport number greater than 2 so that it does not conflict with a Serial comport that you may want to use later.



Note – Many Modbus Ethernet devices ignore the Device Number if there is only one device at a given IP Address. Device Number = 0 uses the Unit Number as the Device Number. The Unit Number is used for display purposes in Advantech WebAccess. The Device Number is used by the communications protocol to the device.

# 2.1 Comport Configuration

First of all you create a SCADA node as the normal process with WebAccess. Then, in the WebAccess Project Manager create a new Comport with "TCPIP" interface name on the SCADA node as shown in the figure 2.1.

Add Comport - Windows			RProjName=LGX%2DPLC%2 - + + × b Bing ProjName=LGX%2DPLC%2 - + + ×			
★ 我的最愛 論 ▶ 建蒜						
Add Comport			👌 🔻 🖾 👻 🗔 🗰 👻 網頁(D) 👻 安全性(S) 👻 工具(D) 👻 🚱 👻			
		Advantech WebAccess Proje	ct Manager Quick Start Help Home Logout			
Project/Node		Crea	te New Comport [Cancel] Submit			
GE9030 GE9070	^	Interface Name	TCPP •			
GPS 17000		Comport Number	1			
ILON100		Description	Description			
ILONSS ION6200	Scan Tin	Scan Time	e 1 O MilliSecond O Second O Minute O Hour			
IVS Keyence		Timeout	1000 MilliSecond			
LGMST		Retry Count	3			
LGXEIPDEV Mewtocol		Auto Recover Time	60 Second			
MICREX MICREXF	E	Backup Port Number	0			
MitsuA		Scan Devices in Parallel	⊙Yes ● No			
MitsuAnA MitsuFx MitsuFx2 MitsuFx3			[Cancel] Submit			
MitsuQ MitsuQ	+		● 網際網路   受保護模式: 關閉 🛛 🖓 👻			



## 2.1.1 Comport Number

The Advantech WebAccess COM Ports are "virtual" in the Advantech WebAccess configuration for TCP/IP. The Advantech WebAccess driver will search all NIC (Network Interface Cards) to find the addressed devices regardless of the configured Comport.

For the Modbus TCP/IP driver, it is recommended to use a Com Port number greater then 2 and that does not utilize an actual Serial com port (e.g. COM1, COM2, etc.) on the SCADA Node..

## 2.1.2 Description

This is an optional field used for user reference.



#### 2.1.3 Scan Time

This is the time in milliseconds to scan the PLC. This must match the ability of the PLC to respond. If the PLC cannot respond as fast as the SCAN Time entered, Advantech WebAccess will scan at a slower rate.

Scan Time is also network dependent, it is possible to enter a Scan Time faster than your network can respond, Advantech WebAccess will poll all devices and tags on the Comport before starting a new scan.

## 2.1.4 Timeout

Timeout is the time waited before re-sending a communications packet that did not have a reply. Timeout specifies how long the software waits for a response to a data request, specifically to wait for a reply from one packet. A recommended value is 7 to 10 ticks, longer if the communication device is slow. This is protocol dependent: some protocols do not allow changes in time out.

Combined with Retry count, Timeout also determines time to consider a device or port as BAD. Timeout is the time to wait since last communication packet sent without a reply. Time is in milliseconds. The slow or poor quality communications require longer timeout. The faster the communications network or device, the shorter the timeout required. Shorter timeouts notify operators of communications failure more quickly.

**Timeout,** multiplied by Retry Count plus scan time, is how long Advantech WebAccess will wait before it considers a device bad. Advantech WebAccess will send a packet wait for the Timeout for a reply. If retry count is non-zero, Advantech WebAccess will repeat the request, wait the Timeout, and repeat for the number of Retry Times. A device is marked Bad (or Failed) after the number of Retries fail. In the example above, Scan Time is 1 second, Retry Count is 3, and Timeout is 200, Advantech WebAccess will:

- Waits 1 second
- Send a packet.
- Wait 200 Milliseconds for a reply.
- Send a packet again if no reply.
- Wait 200 Milliseconds.
- Send A Packet a third Time if no reply
- Wait 200 Milliseconds.
- Mark the device Bad (Failed) if no reply.

In the above example, after approximately 1 + .6 seconds after a device fails, Advantech WebAccess will mark it bad.

## 2.1.5 Retry Count

Number of times to retry communications if not reply is received from a device. Combined with Timeout, also determines time to consider a device or port as BAD.

In addition, Indicates the number of times after the first attempt has failed that communication should be attempted before indicating a failure.



Specifically, how many times to send a single packet after the field device fail to respond to the first packet. After the retry count is exceeded, all the tags in the packet are marked with asterisks and the next packet of requests is sent. A reasonable value is 3 to 5 times. After this number of tries, the tags in this packet are marked as "fail to respond" (i.e. asterisks) and are disabled. In reality, increasing the number of retries hides failures on the part of the field device to respond to a request. Essentially, increasing the retries gives the field device more chances to reply.

## 2.1.6 Auto Recover Time

Auto Recover Time is the time to wait after a Device is marked Bad (or Failed) before re-initializing communications. Advantech WebAccess will mark the device good, send a packet and begin the whole retry / timeout process above.

In the above example for Timeout, Advantech WebAccess will wait 1 minute after a device fails before retrying communications. Every One minute the device will go good, 1.6 seconds later it will be marked bad if it is still failed, repeat.

If communications to the PLC is unusually slow due to hardware, communications or network issues, you might consider increasing this value. If communications to the PLC or RTU fails frequently, you may want to decrease this number in order to have Advantech WebAccess try to re- establish communications sooner.

If communications to the PLC, RTU or device Fails (i.e. exceeds Timeout) Advantech WebAccess will wait the Auto Recover Time before trying to re- establish communications.

## 2.1.7 Backup Port

Auto Recover Time is the time to wait after a Device is marked Bad (or Failed) before re-initializing communications. Advantech WebAccess will mark the device good, send a packet and begin the whole retry / timeout process above.

In the above example for Timeout, Advantech WebAccess will wait 1 minute after a device fails before retrying communications. Every One minute the device will go good, 1.6 seconds later it will be marked Bad if it is still failed, repeat.

If communications to the PLC is unusually slow due to hardware, communications or network issues, you might consider increasing this value. If communications to the PLC or RTU fails frequently, you may want to decrease this number in order to have Advantech WebAccess try to re- establish communications sooner.

If communications to the PLC, RTU or device Fails (i.e. exceeds Timeout) Advantech WebAccess will wait the Auto Recover Time before trying to re- establish communications.

## 2.2 Device Configuration

First you follow the steps of "Add Device" within the WebAccess, the following web page will appear on the screen as shown in the figure 2.2.



Delete Add Tag Add Block					
		Device	Property [Ca	ncel]	Submit
Device Name	ModbusPL	.C			
Description	Tuna				
Unit Number	1				
Device Type	Modicon	~			
		IP Address	67.94.27.177		
Primar	Port Number		5111		
	Device Address		1	if other t	than Unit Numb
	IP Address				
Secondary	ModbusPLC Tuna 1 Modicon IP Address 67.94.27.177 Port Number 5111 Device Address 1 if other than Unit Num				
	D	evice Address			
Use RTU over TCP/IP ? (0:No, 1:Yes) :	0	IP Address 67.94.27.177 Port Number 5111 evice Address 1 if other than Unit Numb IP Address Port Number			
Use UDP :	0		Packet Delay (ms)	: 0	
Digital block size :	512		Analog block size	64	

Figure 2.2

#### 2.2.1 Device Name

A Device is a PLC, Controller, VAV or other automation hardware or software entity. Device name is a User-assigned name that will appear in the Project Manager (Configuration Tool) and in runtime VIEW Displays. Choosing a descriptive Name can help technicians identify the location of your device.

Changing only the Device Name will rename the existing device.

Changing both the Device Name and the Unit Number will make a copy of the device (e.g. create another device).

#### 2.2.2 Description

User assigned description up to 70 characters

## 2.2.3 Unit Number

For Modbus, this must correspond to the Unit Number used in the protocol addressing. This is the address configured in the device or by a dipswitch on the device. The range of Unit Number is 0 to 255 for Modbus.

This Unit Number will appear on the System Status Display, Point Detail, user-built displays and tags to reference the status of this device.

Changing only the Unit Number here will change the existing device.



Changing both the Device Name and the Unit Number will make a copy of the device (e.g. create another device).

## 2.2.4 Device Type

This is the communication Driver used to communicate with all devices on this Com Port. Only one communications protocol is supported on the same COM port. Once a Device Type is created on a COM port, the Device Type of additional devices will be limited to this Device Type. To use another communications device, you must configure another COM port. Multiple TCP/IP type Com Ports can be added which use the same TCP/IP Network Card on your PC.

## 2.2.5 IP Address

IP Address is the IP Address of the PLC, RTU or other device you are establishing communications with. The Primary IP Address must be specified. The Secondary IP Address is used only if the PLC or device has redundant communication cards (i.e. two NICs in the PLC).

#### 2.2.6 Port Number

Port Number is the TCP Port (or UDP port) of the PLC. The Primary must be specified. The Secondary is used only if a Secondary IP address is used.

## 2.2.7 Device Address

Device Address is the Modbus Device Address (0 - 255) used by the Modbus RTU protocol. How this is handled varies by device / manufacturer. Many Modbus TCP/IP devices ignore this Device Address (the Modbus RTU Address). Some Modbus TCP/IP devices have multiple PLCs/ RTUs at the same IP Address, and use the Device Address to route to the correct PLC sharing the same IP address.

If the Device Address is 0, Advantech WebAccess uses the Unit Number as the Device Address.

## 2.2.8 Use RTU over TCP/IP ? (0: No, 1: Yes)

A remote terminal unit (RTU) is a microprocessor-controlled electronic device that interfaces objects in the physical world to a distributed control system or SCADA (supervisory control and data acquisition) system by transmitting telemetry data to a master system, and by using messages from the master supervisory system to control connected objects. Other terms that may be used for RTU are remote telemetry unit and remote telecontrol unit.

#### 2.2.9 Use UDP

The default protocol of the Advantech WebAccess TCP/IP driver is TCP. However, some devices use UDP. If the PLC or Device uses UDP, then you must specify Use UDP = 1 for the Advantech WebAccess configuration of this device.



## 2.2.10 Packet Delay (ms)

Some devices cannot receive very fast request after they respond previous packet. A delay may be required for the next request from Advantech WebAccess for those slow devices, especially for some old power meters.

#### 2.2.11 Digital block size

Some Modbus compatible devices use only a certain part of a Modbus address or only handle a short data range for data request from client. Advantech WebAccess allows users to define the maximum data block size for both requested Digital and Analog type data.

#### 2.2.12 Analog block size

Some Modbus compatible devices use only a certain part of a Modbus address or only handle a short data range for data request from client. Advantech WebAccess allows users to define the maximum data block size for both requested Digital and Analog type data.

#### 2.2.13 Multiple Devices with same Device Address

If you have multiple devices with the same Device Address (e.g. Modbus RTU address 0 - 255), your options are:

1. Configure a Different Advantech WebAccess Unit Number for each device and enter the actual Device Address in the Device Address Field.

Configure Multiple Comports and place the devices on separate comports so that each comport has no device with the same Unit Number. (This is especially true if the device address is 0).

Auto Recover Time is the time to wait after a Device is marked Bad (or Failed) before re-initializing communications. Advantech WebAccess will mark the device good, send a packet and begin the whole retry / timeout process above. In the above example, Advantech WebAccess will wait 1 minute after a device fails before retrying communications. Every One minute the device will go Good, 1.6 seconds later it will be marked Bad if it is still failed, repeat.

## 2.3 Tag Configuration

#### Summary of steps

This example is to configure two Tags that read an Analog Input (Address 30003) and an Analog Output (Address 40015).

- 1. Open Internet Explorer.
- 2. Connect to **Project Node**.
- 3. Start Advantech WebAccess Configuration.
- 4. Select Project.
- 5. Select SCADA Node.
- 6. Select the **Modicon Device**.



- 7. Select Add Tag.
- 8. From **Parameter** Pull Down List Select **AI**. This will configure an Analog Input. Wait for the Page to update.
- 9. Optionally, select ALARM from the **ALARM** pulldown list. Wait for the Page to update with a PINK highlight around alarm (an additional Alarm Fields at bottom of page).
- 10. Enter a **Tagname** users can use to identify this Analog Input measurement. For example, if this is a Flow measurement, enter **Flow1**.
- 11. Edit the Address to the actual address. From the example, Enter:30003
- 12. Enter a Description. This will help identify this tag to Users and Operators. For example, enter Boiler #1 Steam Flow.
- 13. Optionally enter, Scaling, Span Hi, Span Low, Engineering Units, and Alarms; enable data logging, etc.
- 14. Press Submit.
- 15. From **Parameter** Pull Down List Select **AO**. This will configure an Analog Output. Wait for the Page to update.
- 16. Optionally, select **ALARM** from the ALARM pulldown list. Wait for the Page to update with a PINK highlight around alarm (and additional Alarm Fields at bottom of page).
- 17. Enter a **Tagname** users can use to identify this Analog Output measurement. For example, if this is a signal to a Valve, enter **Valve1**.
- 18. Edit the Address to the actual address. From the above example, Enter: 40015
- 19. Enter a Description. This will help identify this tag to Users and Operators. For example, enter Boiler #1 Steam Valve.
- 20. Optionally enter, Scaling, Span Hi, Span Low, Output Limits, Engineering Units, and Alarms; enable data logging, etc.
- 21. Press Submit.

Congratulations! You have just configured a Measurement and Output Tags to Modbus device.

## 2.3.1 Analog Input data type

The web page of setting for "Analog Input" is shown in the figure 2.3.



C Grantastation	eliterative D.A.C. Glading +	
WWW.COMPOSITION	Advantech Wolchcores Project Manager	Databal Bra Res Land
	Create New Tag (Canad) Securi	
Propect/Node	Parameter Poter (moleg)	
DeleDa	Alama H. Arman M.	
A MEADIN ( )	TagNam	
→Zoti,mia "Maina "	Demator / ming hot	1
421	Bas Tay Controller w	
DEACE DAME	Adding 2001	
AIR	Commun Colli Unigeri Interi	11
ABALAT	turik)	
ABRICS	Contraction of the second seco	
ARECER	Longh 18	
ANNUCI ANFEND	Signal Review - Yes + No	
ADAMOR	Balag Typ [1: 34k V]	
ADAMAK	Staring factor ( ) 0	
ADAMINAD	Burling Series 2 (0	
ADANOKASC	LegDate Wei * No.	
ADADRE	Dealing DealBase 2	
ADMEN	West Action Ling • Yes 2 Yes	
AllDAids	Band Dall, A Yes, 1942	
ABRAG	Reng Persons Value Value + No.	
AEGOS AgD45/IA	Indial Value 0	
Nm81D	becardy and 1	
ABAX	Security Lond 1	
APAX1380		
EAS100 SECKHOFT	Rose Migh 1970	
Rad Vanet	Types live 2	
Rind	Value Classe Champite Specification Specificer	
ATE_UPS	Oxyor High Land 1100	
Infadial	Counting Lang 0	
Belleni 2010	Bug Line	
ResDOM .	Digital signification of 1	
87/058	Digit: Agnification 2	
ReL13		
#ithing #isticity		
Ciller	Anning Change Log You You	
CIICAM	and a second sec	
DARKER	ODBULug Dets Some Datab	
Defaatii Defaatii	Amer Tute 0	
ANDRAS		

Figure 2.3

## 2.3.2 Analog Output data type

The web page of setting for "Analog Output" is shown in the figure 2.4.

C C Production Contraction	nile agent (D + C) (D Add Tay -	
	Advantech Welchcom Project Manager	Databal firs from Light
	Create New Yag (Canad) Securi	
Propertificate	Parameter (+) w Post (unity)	
DeceDos	Alama H. Asm. 29	
A NEADA CI	Tarlinia	
- Foth tanks - Marine =	Disputed (ming Organ	10
ANI	Base Tape Counted Tame	
DRACE DAMES	Address 1001	1
AIDI	Communic Code Unigent Lategie V	1.
ABALIER	far Br	
ABRICS	Contraction of the second seco	
ANFLCER	Longik 18	
ARILCI	Signal Resource - Yes - + No	
ADAMOK	Stating Type [4: 3 alt 9]	
ADAMAK .	Starting factor ( 0	
ADAMINAD	Burling Series 210	
ADAMERANC	LagDate Net 9 No.	
ADADEK	Des Lig Deal Bask 2	
ADMEN	New Action Lig . Yes . Dog	
AllBaids	Board Daths C. Yan, 9 Yan,	
AARNG AESTOR	Reg Person Value - Yau - 9 No.	
AnDISTIA	Induit Value D	
Marit 10	becargy analo	
ABAX	Second Se	
APAX1180		
EAS100 BECKINET	Turn high 1970	
Rad Vannei	Types law (2	
KDad	Value Classe Champ to Specification Specifier Champ to Specifier Champ to	Zer.
#16_5.85	OwperHigh Land 1100	
Infadial Infadia	Ougoting Land O	
89700	Brg Link	
10000	Displac significação 1	
87/083	Degle: Agenthaning 2	
ReL10		
\$155mg #5500@		
Ciller	Analog Change Log - Yes + Yes Analog Change Log David David	
CIICAM		
DARKER	ODBU Log Deta Somie (Difail)	
Delladii	Anney Bate 10	,
Deinett.C		

Figure 2.4

#### 2.3.3 Discrete Input data type

The web page of setting for "Discrete Input" is shown in the figure 2.5.



😋 - 🕢	Add Tay -	
	Advanteda Welecters Project Manager	Data Set first from Sales
Propert/Noos Program/Noos Prof. Santa Prof. Santa Prof. Santa Prof. Santa Prof. Santa Prof. Santa Alla Construction Alla Alla Loss Alla Loss	Concerve for     Concerve for       Search of the se	

Figure 2.5

## 2.3.4 Discrete Output data type

The web page of setting for "Discrete Output" is shown in the figure 2.6.

C N Mar toutent tournet to	E REC GAMIN	n #25
	Advantsch WeikAccom Propert Manager	Bandhe Bar Ran Sane
-	Cross See Top (Canal) Source	3
Filesce Note	Permitter (C) Print	
itimilia	Alere H. Alan . w	
- x x x x x	Tag Neur	
- Mailer -	December December	1 is
ABL	Son Type Could from w	
Desce Driver	Address (2011	
410.	Commune Code Uni parl heye:	
ABALOT	Turi Ba	
ABRICO	THE PARTY AND	
SRECER	Long th 1	
ARKC:	Tapai Javena	
ATLANE IN	Lag Data - Yau + Yu	
ADAMSE	Data Lig Deat Base 7	
ADAMSME	Write Action Log . Yes . We	
ADAMOKAIK	Band Club: Yan . Yan	
ADAMERE ADAMER	Reep Persons Voler 1 View + Ku.	
ADMIN.	Initial Vidae ()	
Adv D Andy	Sector and	
Adv.25.WG Adv.000	Terrary land (	
ALLAND	base 8 P	
Aniikii:24 AlexiiiDD		
15/05	Plane 3 1	
APAX1980	State 2 Har Low	
EALURE	Enan 2 New Loos	
BACRHOFT .	Rade # ThirtUpp!	
fall Vitied Effects	Tage \$ (Mr/Und)	
LING UP	Trate # Skir User	
Indiactive)	Tana T Mar Just	
En Const		
19/26	Log To 0000 Ster. + Nor 00000 Log Ster Sterror Datust V	
Britisk Britisk		
In EAL	Arrey Sate	
EXTing .	Band Star	
Indiate .		
Chillen		
CDCAMP DAE925		
Demail		
DengLC		

Figure 2.6

## 2.3.5 Text data type

The web page of setting for "Text" is shown in the figure 2.7.



G G realization to and the	and the second sec	
	Advantech Welchcom Propert Manager	Date has been been a
Prosect/back	Constructing Galaxies Parameter Top Name Top Name T	
ADAONS ADDAON AD	Iter to Control of Con	

Figure 2.7

# 2.4 Parameter Configuration

For the convenient of user, the WebAccess provide the default parameter sets as shown in figure 2.8.

	Advisored N	Teleboren Pr	oject Manage	e.	this bet Hig	bas Lips
Promit/hode	Parameter of Children					
initia o	Parameter same	Parameter Type	Alden	Description	Update	Delete
(ender) (ender)	Al	analog	30001	Analog Import	Laure .	Think
20th	AO	- maker	40001	Analog Owner	Caster.	Intern
Rest CPC	100	analog	10001	303	tank	Tiniste
athat	812	analog .	300012	10.2	Chiles	Union
A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	10.1	maler	30003	103	Lines	- Challens
Comet	114	unalog	30004	194	Contemp	Ilalaw
Classe	105	analog.	100015	101	Lain	Daire
teost?	196	analog.	30004	De	Laws.	Cheste
HERE S	NT.	analog.	Jong 1	ko t	Laine	Calas
Elana There	106	analog	10016	lat	1000	Delater
oku.	100	analog	10009	128	100	Linkes.
túlin éób	110	analog .	30010	110		Datate
ALLINK	-115		30011	111	Later	11adam
empUNC renCTIC	112	molog	30011	112		
ent.op		analog			Links	Takes
110	11)	ensleg	30013	117	Links	Dem
SLNA	114	ander	30084	124	Lane	Desse
200	115	ander:	30015	125	Lizor	Ilbitate
ARDER	126	maler	30016	116	Tasse	(Dates)
CLUCTUR CLUCTUR	117	analog	BOILT	112	Lister	Debte
10_0700 HIOP	114	analog	30018	111	Laws	Hatate
NEW COL	119	ander	30019	119	Casimo	Dalater
AMOTT	128	analog	30030	120-	Linker	11 addated
6GE	DE	ducrete	10001	DI	Later	lister
DENDEL	DO	ducrete.	00001	Description	Later	Gelate
naEDC	TEXT	teat	+0001	TEXT	Later	Liniahr
0476			Hire's Typ		Update	Delate
~			AI26		Lines	Didate

#### Figure 2.8

User could add or modify these Parameter Sets as the standard procedure provided by the WebAccess.



# 3. Error Code

8200 LRC/CRC error
808X Function error
8300 Incorrect message sequence
-> means Unit ID incorrect or
-> Function Code incorrect (e.g. expect return 1 / 0, but actually returns 1000)
83XX Write command error code
8C2C CRC error (MP900)
8100 Open port failed/Message size error
8FFF Data type received mismatchs with coigured type
8FFE Conversion code error
8000 Communication Timeout
FFFF Driver init failure
0XF002 / F002 Type mismatch
9000 Fail to send packet to device three times continuously (appears after 8000 error code)
0xa111 Data convert error(GMT\_TO\_TEXT)